
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD 
OF TEAMSTERS, et al., 

Defendant. 

88 Civ. 4486 (DNE) 

APPLICATION LXXVIII OF THE 
INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
—OPINION OF THE 
INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING 
OF TERRENCE FREEMAN 

Pursuant to Paragraph O. of the Rules of Procedures for 

Operation of the Independent Review Board ("IRB") for the 

International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IRB Rules"), Application 

is made by the IRB for ruling by the Honorable David N. Edelstein, 

United States District Judge for the Southern District of New York, 

on the issues heard by the IRB during a hearing on July 8, 1999, 

and thereafter determined, on the charges filed against Local 507 

member and Secretary-Treasurer Terrence Freeman ("Freeman"). 

Freeman was charged with bringing reproach upon the IBT 

and violating the IBT Constitution by testifying falsely before a 

federal grand jury and in his sworn examination before the IRB. 

Having considered the evidence and post-hearing submissions by the 

Chief Investigator, the IRB found that the charge against Freeman 

was proved. As a penalty, Freeman is to serve a three-year 

suspension, less the twenty-month suspension already served. 

During the remaining sixteen months of his suspension, 

Freeman may not obtain employment, consulting or other work, from 

the IBT or IBT-affiliated entity. 



Enclosed with the January 31, 2000, Opinion are the 

following exhibits: 

1) October 13, 1998, IRB Investigative 
Report with exhibits 1-12; 

2) July 8, 1999, Freeman Hearing Transcript 
with IRB's exhibits IRB 1 - IRB 12. 

It is respectfully requested that an Order be entered 

affirming the IRB's January 31, 2000, Opinion if Your Honor finds 

it appropriate. 

Frederick B. Lacey/^ 
Member of the 
Independent Review Board 

Dated: February 9, 2000 
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IN RE: T E R R E N C E FREEMAN 
Local Union 507 
Joint Counci! No. 1 

x 

DECISION 

On O c t o b e r 13, 1998, w e re fe r red our Report , per ta ining to Local 507 m e m b e r 

a n d S e c r e t a r y - T r e a s u r e r T e r r e n c e F r e e m a n ("Freeman") , a n d a c c o m p a n y i n g exhibits 

to Gary M. Tiboni, P r e s i d e n t of Joint Counci) No. 1. First, t he Repor t a l leged tha t while 

a n tBT Member , F r e e m a n violated Article H, Sec t ion 2(a) a n d Article XIX, Sec t ion 

7(b)(1) a n d (2) of t h e )BT Const i tut ion by testifying falsely b e f o r e a f ede ra l g r a n d jury. 

S e c o n d , t h e Repor t a l l eged tha t while a n IBT officer a n d member , F r e e m a n brought 

r e p r o a c h u p o n the tBT a n d fai led to c o o p e r a t e with the IRB in violation of Article II, 

Sec t ion 2 ( a ) a n d Article XIX, Sec t ion 7(b)(1) a n d Sect ion 14(i) of the !BT Consti tut ion 

w h e n h e test if ied fa lse ly during his sworn examinat ion of J u n e 18, 1998 by the IRB. On 

N o v e m b e r 25, 1998, Joint Council No. 1 P res iden t Gary M. Tiboni filed the a b o v e -

r e c o m m e n d e d c h a r g e s a g a i n s t F r e e m a n . T h e c h a r g e s will he re ina f t e r b e re fe r red to a s 

t h e "first" a n d " second" c h a r g e s . 

At his hea r ing b e f o r e u s F r e e m a n did not con tes t his culpability. Accordingly t h e 

only q u e s t i o n b e f o r e u s is t h e pena l ty to b e imposed . B e c a u s e we b a s e part of our 

d ispos i t ion on t h e resolut ion of criminal c h a r g e s aga ins t F r e e m a n , w e d e s c r i b e t h o s e 

c h a r g e s in Par t it be low b e f o r e dec id ing the c h a r g e s filed by t h e Joint Council in Part IV 

below. 

!. Background 

Local 5 0 7 r e p r e s e n t s w a r e h o u s e , manufac tur ing , p roces s ing , a s s e m b l i n g a n d 



installing e m p l o y e e s in t h e vicinity of C u y a h o g a County, Ohio. Its office is located in 

C leve land . F r e e m a n jo ined t h e IBT in the 1970 ' s when the non-IBT affiliated local h e 

w a s r e p r e s e n t e d by m e r g e d into Local 507. With the except ion of t h e voluntary l eave 

d e s c r i b e d below, F r e e m a n h a s b e e n a b u s i n e s s a g e n t of Local 5 0 7 from that t ime to 

t h e p r e s e n t a n d S e c r e t a r y - T r e a s u r e r of Local 507 from 1994 to p r e sen t . 

!!. Underlying Federa! Crimina! Conviction 
On S e p t e m b e r 17, 1997, t h e f ede ra ) g rand jury of t h e U.S. District Court for t h e 

Nor thern District of Ohio r e tu rned a t h ree -coun t indictment a g a i n s t F r e e m a n . Genera l ly 

s u m m a r i z e d , Coun t 1 c h a r g e d tha t at a t ime w h e n Riser employed m e m b e r s of Loca! 

5 0 7 u n d e r a collect ive ba rga in ing a g r e e m e n t , F r e e m a n s o u g h t t h e a g r e e m e n t of the 

execu t ive of a c o m p a n y , Riser F o o d s , inc., ("Riser") and from a Rise r execut ive, 

Anthony R e g o ("Rego"), to prohibit F r e e m a n ' s o p p o n e n t for local off ice f rom 

c a m p a i g n i n g on Ri se r ' s proper ty . In ef fec t Count 1 c h a r g e d that in return F r e e m a n 

would a g r e e to a t e m p o r a r y reduct ion in contr ibut ions p a y a b l e to t h e pens ion and 

we l f a re f u n d s the e m p l o y e r w a s ob l iga ted to pay into u n d e r t h e collective barga in ing 

a g r e e m e n t . Coun t 2 c h a r g e d F r e e m a n with lying to the g r a n d jury conce rn ing the 

a b o v e - d e s c r i b e d a l l e g e d bribe. Count 3 c h a r g e d F r e e m a n with lying to the g rand jury 

c o n c e r n i n g w h e t h e r h e h a d e v e n met with the c o m p a n y officials in ques t ion a n d 

w h e t h e r F r e e m a n h a d r e q u e s t e d tha t R i se r t ake ac t ions to curtail his o p p o n e n t ' s 

c a m p a i g n a m o n g R i se r ' s e m p l o y e e s . 

On t h e d a y h e w a s indicted, F r e e m a n submit ted a written r e q u e s t for voluntary 

l e a v e f rom his posi t ion a s S e c r e t a r y - T r e a s u r e r of Local 507. This voluntary l eave 

r e q u e s t w a s a c c e p t e d by t h e local union. It b e g a n immediately on S e p t e m b e r 17 a n d 
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l a s ted until J u n e 3, 1999. During that t ime F r e e m a n rece ived no p a y or benef i t s a n d 

did not par t ic ipa te in union mee t ings . Following the indictment, t h e Local Union filed 

its own c h a r g e s a g a i n s t F r e e m a n on D e c e m b e r 23, 1997 but s u s p e n d e d the p r o c e s s i n g 

of t h o s e c h a r g e s a l legedly p u r s u a n t to Article XIX, Sec t ion 7(a) of t h e IBT Consti tut ion 

"so tha t Brother F r e e m a n [could] b e a f fo rded a full a n d fair hea r ing [on the federa) 

indictment] without j eopard iz ing his right aga in s t self-[i]ncrimination." 

T h e trial on t h e f ede ra l indictment w a s held on Augus t 10-15, 1998 be fo re U.S. 

District J u d g e S o l o m o n Oliver. At his f ede ra l criminal trial, F r e e m a n a c k n o w l e d g e d that 

a c a m p a i g n for e lect ion of Local Union 5 0 7 off icers w a s ongoing in Augus t of 1993 

w h e n h e visi ted t h e office of Riser a n d met with Rego , Cha i rman a n d Chief Execut ive 

Officer of Riser . This a c k n o w l e d g m e n t is cons i s t en t with F r e e m a n ' s travel records , 

r e fe r r ed to a s "route shee t s " . F r e e m a n f u r n i s h e d t h o s e d o c u m e n t s , which w e r e u s e d at 

t h e trial to convict him a s d e s c r i b e d below. F r e e m a n test if ied that R e g o ra i sed the 

topic of a local union political c ampa ign , c a m p a i g n literature, a n d the firing of p e o p l e 

w h o fai led to k e e p up product ion s t a n d a r d s b e c a u s e they w e r e s t and ing a r o u n d talking 

politics. F r e e m a n a l s o a c k n o w l e d g e d that h e met with Rise r ' s a t torney, Rober t Duvin 

("Duvin") in D e c e m b e r of 1 9 9 3 a n d tha t Duvin " b e g a n to talk a b o u t Riser F o o d s not 

hav ing t h e ability to pay the cont r ibut ions to the Health & W e l f a r e & Pens ion ." T h e 

t e s t imony a s to w h a t e l s e w a s sa id at t h e s e two m e e t i n g s w a s o the rwise d i spu ted by 

F r e e m a n , on t h e o n e hand , a n d R e g o a n d Duvin on the other . 

T h e jury acqu i t t ed F r e e m a n on the first a n d s e c o n d c o u n t s of the indictment. 

T h e jury f o u n d F r e e m a n guilty u n d e r Count HI of t h e indictment. In effect , a s w a s later 
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n o t e d by J u d g e Oliver, t h e jury simply found that F r e e m a n had lied abou t mee t ing with 

R e g o a n d Duvin but tha t h e h a d not lied abou t any participation in t h e a i l eged bribery. 

F r e e m a n w a s s e n t e n c e d by J u d g e Oliver on N o v e m b e r 17, 1998 to five m o n t h s 

of impr i sonment fol lowed by five m o n t h s at a work r e l e a s e center . 

!H. Response of Joint Councit to Our Report 
Following t h e N o v e m b e r 15, 1998 filing of the c h a r g e s , with Joint Council No. 1, 

t h e Joint Council f o rwarded to u s by cover letter of J a n u a r y 4, 1999 its Pane l Repor t 

a n d R e c o m m e n d a t i o n s . T h e P a n e l conc tuded that t he c h a r g e s aga in s t F r e e m a n 

shou ld b e d i smi s sed . By letter of March 8, 1999, we notified Joint Councit No. 1 that its 

dec i s ion w a s unlawful, not r e spons ib ly d e c i d e d a n d i n a d e q u a t e u n d e r t h e 

c i r c u m s t a n c e s . W e al lowed t h e Joint Council ten d a y s to se t forth in writing any a n d all 

addi t ional a c t i ons it h a d t aken , or would take, to correct d e f e c t s that w e r e poin ted out in 

tha t letter. W e a l so indicated that it a p p e a r e d that t he Joint Council Execut ive Board 

may h a v e de l ibera te ly ignored their obl igat ions u n d e r the C o n s e n t D e c r e e to ad jud i ca t e 

this discipl inary c h a r g e fairly. W e h a d instructed the Chief Invest igator to inves t iga te 

w h e t h e r a n y of t h e Joint Council m e m b e r s h a d intentionally or u n r e a s o n a b l y fai led to 

c o o p e r a t e with t h e !RB in violation of their obl igat ions u n d e r the C o n s e n t Order a n d the 

IBT Const i tu t ion. 

On March 18, 1999, t h e Execut ive Board of Joint Council No. 1 i s sued a 

modif ied dec i s ion vaca t ing t h e J a n u a r y 4 dec is ion but f inding that t he J a n u a r y 4 

dec i s ion w a s " r e spons ib l e a n d sufficient". In its rev i sed March 18 decis ion, Joint 

Counci l No. 1 f o u n d a g a i n s t F r e e m a n a s to the first c h a r g e a n d s u s p e n d e d him f rom 

off ice for twenty- four m o n t h s with credit for the t ime for which h e h a d voluntarily t aken 
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u n p a i d l e a v e . T h e Jo in t Counci l a l s o f o u n d a g a i n s t F r e e m a n on our s e c o n d c h a r g e 

a n d s u s p e n d e d F r e e m a n for !ife f rom off ice a n d m e m b e r s h i p . T h e Joint Council found , 

a s to its r e v i s e d dec i s ion : 

As with o t h e r m a t t e r s in this p r o c e e d i n g , t h e r e w a s not o n e right a n s w e r 
a n d o n e w r o n g a n s w e r . T h e Joint Counci l e x e r c i s e d its d i sc re t ion in a 
lawful a n d r e s p o n s i b l e way a n d its dec i s ion w a s suff icient . 

By tet ter d a t e d April 15, 1999, w e notified Joint Counci l No. 1 P r e s i d e n t Tiboni that t h e 

f o r e g o i n g d e c i s i o n w a s i n a d e q u a t e . W e t h e n s e t t h e ma t t e r for a d e novo hea r ing 

b e f o r e t h e IRB. T h a t h e a r i n g w a s he ld on July 8, 1 9 9 9 in C l e v e l a n d . 

)V. Resotution of Two Charges Pending Before !RB 
At his h e a r i n g F r e e m a n did not c o n t e s t t h e c h a r g e s . He admi t t ed the convict ion 

for perjury^ a n d admi t t ed tha t h e p rov ided f a l s e t e s t imony in his sworn IRB examina t ion 

w h e n h e s t a t e d tha t h e did not a t t e n d a m e e t i n g with R e g o prior to 1 9 9 3 a n d tha t h e did 

not r e m e m b e r a t t e n d i n g s u c h a mee t ing . Accordingly, C h a r g e 1 a n d C h a r g e 2 h a v e 

b e e n e s t a b l i s h e d . 

V. Sanction 
)n c o n s i d e r i n g t h e s a n c t i o n to b e i m p o s e d , w e t a k e into a c c o u n t t h e following 

mit igat ing f a c t o r s : F r e e m a n ' s s e l f - i m p o s e d s u s p e n s i o n , which inc luded a total loss of 

s a l a r y a n d b e n e f i t s a n d o t h e r indicia of a c c e p t a n c e of responsibi l i ty ; including his 

e x p r e s s i o n s of r e m o r s e f u l n e s s ; t h e f ac t tha t h e w a s not ef fec t ive ly r e p r e s e n t e d by 

'Under the Consent Decree, Freeman cannot contest in this union disciplinary proceeding facts 
found against him in the federal criminal proceeding. United States v. Internationa] Brotherhood 
of Teamsters (Friedman and Hushes) . 725 F.Supp. 162, 166-67 (SDNY 1989), a f f d 905 F.2d 
610, 620-21 (2"^Cir. 1990). 
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c o u n s e l at t h e t ime t h e per jury w a s commit ted ; and , t h e n a t u r e of t h e of fense .^ 

F r e e m a n a c c e p t e d responsibi l i ty for his a c t i o n s by not con t e s t i ng the f a c t s 

under ly ing t h e a l l e g a t i o n s in this p r o c e e d i n g . Fur ther , a t t h o u g h not entirety voluntary, 

F r e e m a n ' s wi thdrawa) f rom t h e b u s i n e s s of Loca) 5 0 7 u p o n his f e d e r a l indic tment is a n 

indica tor of a c c e p t a n c e of responsibi l i ty . At his f e d e r a l criminal trial, F r e e m a n test i f ied 

voluntari ly a n d p r o d u c e d e v i d e n c e , t he rou te s h e e t s , tha t w a s u s e d to convict him. 

F u r t h e r m o r e , h e tes t i f ied truthfully a b o u t his m e e t i n g with R e g o , cont radic t ing his 

ea r l i e r g r a n d jury a n d sworn e x a m i n a t i o n tes t imony. He e x p r e s s e d r e m o r s e for that 

prior t e s t imony . 

In all, F r e e m a n w a s r e p r e s e n t e d by six lawyers . T h e first of t he six l awyers 

r e p r e s e n t e d him at his IRB sworn e x a m i n a t i o n in 1995. T h e next two l awyers 

r e p r e s e n t e d him b e f o r e t h e g r a n d jury. D e s p i t e t h e o b v i o u s r e l e v a n c y of d o c u m e n t s , 

s u c h a s t h e r o u t e s h e e t s which ul t imately s e r v e d to remind F r e e m a n of t h e mee t ing h e 

h a d a t t e n d e d with R e g o , n o n e of t h e s e t awyer s m a d e a n y effort to loca te d o c u m e n t s 

which wou ld h a v e a s s i s t e d F r e e m a n in a n s w e r i n g t h e q u e s t i o n s p o s e d to him in the 

a b o v e - n o t e d p r o c e e d i n g s . T h e a b o v e t h r e e l awyers a l s o r e p r e s e n t e d t h e local union. 

^We also note the rote Freeman has played in the affairs of Local 507. For many years Harold 
Friedman dominated Loca! 507. He was suspended by the Independent Administrator in 1990. 
U.S. v. IBT ("'Friedman"). 905 F.2d 610 (2"^ Cir. 1990). Up to that point throughout his career in 
the Local, Freeman had been supervised by Friedman. Freeman was never charged with 
misconduct by the independent investigator. After substantial effort under the Consent Decree to 
cleanse the Local of the Friedman regime, Freeman ran for office in 1993 and was elected as the 
Secretary-Treasurer of the local. Following Freeman's election and under his leadership, the local 
has delivered on many of the promises of union democracy and participation by members in affairs 
of the Local as guaranteed by the IBT Constitution. These benefits include rank and file 
involvement in contract negotiations, dramatically increased participation in general membership 
meetings, as well as organizing and steward training seminars and membership education. 
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Only a f t e r his S e p t e m b e r 1997 indictment w a s F r e e m a n re fer red to a criminal 

lawyer. T h e first criminal lawyer h e re ta ined b e c a m e u n a b l e to r e p r e s e n t him, but in 

the m e a n t i m e did not d e v e l o p any d e f e n s e . T h e s e c o n d criminal lawyer h e re ta ined 

was , initially at least , u n a b l e to a s s i s t in the d e v e l o p m e n t of F r e e m a n ' s c a s e b e c a u s e 

of a s e r i o u s i l lness. After F r e e m a n s h o w e d up for his May 1 9 9 8 sworn examina t ion by 

the !RB without a lawyer, h e w a s r e p r e s e n t e d at t he con t inued examina t ion held in 

J u n e of 1 9 9 8 by t h e s a m e lawyer w h o had fai led to p r e p a r e F r e e m a n for the 

examina t ion . Only following tha t p r o c e d u r e w a s any a t t empt m a d e to loca te re levant 

d o c u m e n t s , e spec i a l l y t h e route s h e e t s d e s c r i b e d a b o v e . Tha t lawyer a n d a sixth 

lawyer w e r e involved in locating the route s h e e t s , p repar ing for a n d trying the criminal 

c a s e . 

Notwi ths tanding the fact that perjury is n e v e r a c c e p t a b l e , howeve r a n d w h e n e v e r 

commit ted , t h e r e a r e different d e g r e e s of perjury. J u d g e Oliver re jec ted the r e q u e s t of 

the g o v e r n m e n t to i m p o s e the disqual if icat ion f rom union off ice u n d e r § 504(b) of t h e 

L a b o r - M a n a g e m e n t Repor t ing a n d Disc losure Act, 2 9 U.S.C. 504(b) . J u d g e Oliver 

careful ly a n a l y z e d t h e verdict of the jury in light of the c o u n t s of t h e indictment a n d 

c o n c l u d e d tha t t h e jury h a d simply found that F r e e m a n h a d lied abou t a t tending the 

m e e t i n g with R e g o , a n d nothing more . In par t icular J u d g e Oliver found that t h e local 

union h a d not b e e n h a r m e d , a n d tha t F r e e m a n h a d not u s e d his posit ion "in any 

capac i ty to ob ta in illegal gain at t he e x p e n s e of t h e m e m b e r s of t h e organiza t ion or the 

bene f i c i a r i e s of t h e benef i t plan." 

V). Conctusion 

B a s e d on t h e foregoing , Local 507 m e m b e r a n d S e c r e t a r y - T r e a s u r e r T e r r e n c e 
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Freeman b rough t reproach upon the IBT and violated the IBT Const i tut ion by testifying 

falsely as to his mee t i ng with Rego before both the federat grand jury and in his sworn 

examina t ion be fore the !RB. tn iight of the foregoing mitigating factors w e find that a three-

year suspens ion , !ess the twen ty -month suspens ion a l ready served, is a sufficient sanct ion 

for F r e e m a n ' s m i sconduc t . Dur ing the remain ing sixteen m o n t h s of his suspens ion , 

F reeman may not obta in e m p l o y m e n t , consul t ing or o ther work, f rom any IBT or IBT-

affitiated enti ty. )f h e desires , he may mainta in his m e m b e r s h i p in the IBT; but, Freeman 

may not par t ic ipa te in any affairs of t he local union. 

M e m b e r s of the 
Independen t Review Board 

Wil l iam H. W e b s t e r 

Dated: January 2 0 0 0 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

X 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Plaintiffs, 

-v-

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF 
TEAMSTERS, et al.. 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM & ORDER 
88 Civ. 4486 (DNE) 

-X 

EDELSTEIN. District Judge: 

WHEREAS on October 13, 1998, the Independent Review Board 

("IRB") issued an Investigative Report and forwarded it to Gary 

M. Tiboni ("Tiboni"), President of Joint Council No. 1, 

recommending two charges against Local 507 member and Secretary-

Treasurer Terrence Freeman ("Freeman"): (a) bringing reproach 

upon the International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IBT") by 

testifying falsely before a federal grand jury, in violation of 

Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and (2) 

of the IBT Constitution,- ("first charge"), and (b) testifying 

falsely during his sworn examination of June 18, 1998 by the IRB, 

in violation of Article II, Section 2(a), Article XIX, Section 

7(b)(1), and Section 14(i) of the IBT Constitution ("second 

charge"); and 



WHEREAS by letter dated November 25, 1998, Tiboni advised 

the IRB that he had filed charges against Freeman, and by letter 

dated January 4, 1999, the Executive Board of Joint Council No. 1 

("Executive Board") forwarded to the IRB its Panel Report and 

Recommendations ("January 4 Report") concluding that the charges 

against Freeman should be dismissed; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated March 8, 1999, the IRB informed the 

Executive Board that its decision was unlawful, not responsibly 

decided, and inadequate under the circumstances, and directed it 

to set forth in writing, within ten days, any actions it had 

taken or would take to correct the defect; and 

WHEREAS on March 18, 1999, the Executive Board issued a 

modified report, (1) vacating the January 4 decision, (2) finding 

against Freeman as to both charges, (3) suspending Freeman from 

office for twenty-four months, with credit for roughly twenty 

months he had voluntarily taken unpaid leave from September 17, 

1997 until June 3, 1999, for the first charge, and (4) suspending 

Freeman for life from office and membership, for the second 

charge; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated April 15, 1999, the IRB notified 

Tiboni that the amended decision was inadequate; and 

WHEREAS on April 15, 1999, at the direction of the IRB, 
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John J. Cronin, Jr. ("Cronin"), the IRB administrator, notified 

Freeman, by UPS overnight letter, that a de novo hearing was 

scheduled for May 14, 1999, at 10:00 a.m., at the offices of the 

IRB, located at 444 North Capitol Street, N.W., Suite 528, 

Washington, D.C., and also gave Freeman the opportunity, in the 

alternative, to have the hearing in Cleveland, Ohio, if he were 

to reply within five days stating his preference; and 

WHEREAS on May 19, 1999, by UPS overnight letter, Cronin 

confirmed Freeman's request of April 19, 1999 and rescheduled the 

hearing for July 8, 1999, at 10:00 a.m., at the law offices of 

Jones, Day, Reavis & Pogue, North Point, 901 Lakeside Avenue, 

Cleveland, Ohio; and 

WHEREAS on July 8, 1999, the noticed hearing went forward 

before the IRB and Freeman did not contest the charges; and 

WHEREAS at the hearing, the IRB reviewed evidence 

establishing that Freeman testified falsely before a federal 

grand jury and in his sworn examination before the IRB, as well 

as evidence of a number of mitigating factors, including 

Freeman's self-imposed suspension, his expressions of 

remorsefulness, that he was not effectively represented by 

counsel at the time he committed the perjury, and the nature of 

the offense; and r 
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WHEREAS by Opinion and Decision dated January 31, 2000, 

having considered the evidence and post-hearing submissions, the 

IRB found the charges against Freeman were proved and imposed a 

three-year suspension, less the twenty-month suspension he had 

already served; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated February 18, 2000, this Court 

offered Freeman the opportunity to submit written objections to 

Application LXXVIII by March 8, 1999 at 5:00 p.m.; and 

WHEREAS Freeman never submitted any objections to 

Application LXXVIII to this Court; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated March 3, 2000, the Government 

requested that the matter be remanded to the IRB, based on the 

allegations that (1) Freeman did not adhere to his self-imposed 

suspension when he ran for reelection to the position of 

Secretary-Treasurer in November 1999 and subsequently accepted 

appointment by Local 507 as a business agent, and (2) the IRB did 

not consider fully the extent of the harm to the Union that 

resulted from Freeman's perjury; and 

WHEREAS, through counsel, by letter dated March 6, 2000, 

Freeman informed this Court that the Government had erred in its 

description of the length of his self-imposed suspension, and 

that Freeman had informed the IRB of his intention to return to 

4 



union office, subject to any objection of the IRB, see Letter 

from Joyce Goldstein, Attorney for Freeman, to Honorable David N. 

Edelstein of March 6, 2000, at Exhibs. A and B; and 

WHEREAS the IRB did not raise any objections to Freeman's 

stated intention to return to union office; and 

WHEREAS in its January 31, 2000 Opinion and Decision the IRB 

fully considered the perjury charges against Freeman, the harm he 

caused, and his subsequent behavior; and 

WHEREAS having reviewed the IRB's January 31, 2000 Opinion 

and Decision and all accompanying exhibits, this Court finds that 

the charge against Freeman has been proven by a preponderance of 

the evidence; and 

WHEREAS having reviewed the sanctions imposed by the IRB, 

this Court finds that the sanctions are proportionate to the 

severity of the misconduct of which Freeman is guilty; and 

WHEREAS accordingly, this Court finds that Application 

LXXVIII of the IRB should be granted; 
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT Application LXXVIII of the 

Independent Review Board regarding the charges and sanctions 

imposed against Terrence Freeman is GRANTED. 

SO ORDERED. 
Dated: June 13, 2000 

New York, New York 
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